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DOCUMENT FILE No.
BUILDING TITLE MEcHANICs INSTITUOTE
LOCAL GOVERNMENT AREA CATY ©OF BRALLAAERAT

NATIONAL ESTATE PROJECT No.
DOCUMENTATION OF LISTED HISTORIC BUILDINGS IN VICTORIA

DESIGNATION H.B.P.C. REGISTER No. NATIONAL TRUST (X1 (Rl FILE No.

BUILDING TYPE MeEcCHANICS INSTITUTE
BUILDING NAME MECHANICS IMNSTITUTE

STATE vicTOR A

LOCAL GOVT AREA CATY OF BALLAARAT
STREET sSTurT No. nS-149.
SUBURB,'TOWN BALLARAT C.g&.[02.

CITY BALLAARAT POSTCODE RIBSO

RURAL

NEAREST CENTRE Km.
TITLE REFERENCE Vol Fol
DIRECTORY

NEGATIVE FILE FlLM 7 /r—’—f?.,o-ma 25,

PHOTOGRAPHIC ILLUSTRATICN
DATE OF SURVEY/INSPECTION JULY 12768 .

OWNERSHIP ORIGINAL MECHANICS INsSTITUTE /GOt EXcHANGE
PRESENT BALLARAT MECHANICS INSTITUTE
ADDRESS \17 STURT STREET,

ARCHITECT/RRACEICY oTURT =T, FACADE ; REAR cHARLES Boy KET
‘BUILDER REAR FRANCAS Ari WATSOM .

ARTISANS/TRADES

TENDERS REFERENCE

DATE OF CONSTRUCTION REAR. 1860, FroNT \B&I,

ESTIMATE/CONTRACT VALUE R eaAR ﬁs 500, FRONT L8000

ALTERATIONS/ADDITIONS 187 9 - m(itlAk ROOM A-Dos,;:--) 1901, AUTERATIONS To HALL
CLEGG, KELL £ MILLER } 1905 BRIck A-obrnqus CLEGSH | MILLER

BUILDING CITATION
The foundation stone of the rear hall was laid on 28 September 1860, the architec

was Charles Boykett., Contractors were Messrs.Francis and Watson, the contract su
‘EJSBS. Boykett's design for the later front section was superseded by the
design of J.H.Jones. This section was opened on 21 July 1869. The hall of the
original Mining Exchange was taken over when the new Exchange was built and is
now the reading room and library. The building is an unusual but perhaps not an
entirely successful composition in two large projecting bays and a narrower centr
section over the arched entry. This also incorporates a recessed balcony covered
by a compressed hemicycle above and an open balcony above this surmounted by a
large female statue. The side bays are simply fenestrated with arched and square
windows set between pilasters of representational masonry. The roof has been re-
built removing the widow's walk, and the ground floor shopfronts and doors altere
and an insensitive awning verandah constructed in lieu of the earlier post suppor
verandahs. This building is of importance on both architectural and historical
grounds. It is a unique combination of elements and the library interior is of
major importance. The building hds strong historical associations with many of
Ballarat's founding fathers and the buildings were impressive structures for thei

period of construction.

RECOMMENDATIONS '
It is recommended that this building be added to the Historic Buildings Register,

. the Register of the National Estate, and be specified under Clause 8 of the Town

and Country Planning Act_JThird Schedule).
310




Y -

‘DOCUMENTATION SOURCES

01 GOVERNMENT RECORDS

02 LOCAL GOVERNMENT RECORDS
03 ARCHIVES/CATALOGUES

04 ARCHITECTS INDEX

‘05 ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS/ILLUSTRATIONa

06 PHOTOGRAPHIC RECORDS

07 NATIONAL TRUST FILE/ HISTORIC BUILDINGS PRESERVATION COUNCIIL FILE
08 PRIVATE RECORDS

D2 BAUARAT chTY COOrCIL BOUILDING PRMITS BOoK |
04 RE. cHARLES gBoYkeTT £ JOKN K| jomes

Df LATROBE LIBRAENY H L4B07 o 1864

| NETTLETONS ViEWS oF VicTop 4. .
U5 VERMON COLLESTION DKANI'\IC;S For. Tue MECHANICS

~e
l%‘;’ruTe B&Y JONES , tomTrRALT DaTE RE SEPTEMBER

EGG AnD mes A-DD
\TIONS IQ.A-U']" DAT
e e 20 JULY 1932 GoHT =

— U'NDMEP PrRAINGS  FOR cONVEMIENCES |

B M e gt ms v rerbme raae tm b ar s LR e a o ea v -

BIBLIOGRAPHY _ ‘ _
SPIELVOS EL PAPr.—:zs.. P38, HELD BALLARAT usm‘f-

2
SPIELVOSEL, Migrory oF BALARAT, P35,
3. \N\Tu-é&e-,

- HHsTory OF BALL ARNT Pr2687

‘f" - BALLARAT sar ' ze/7/1800
55 5""""” CYCLOPED |4 OF VICTORIA V.2. Pz4g

.

ASSESSMENT OF LISTING
CONDITION/INTEGRITY OF BUILDING SHop FROMTS £ VERLA~NDAH ALTERED.
SIGNIFICANCE OF BUILDING

LANDSCAPE/STREETSCAPE/EWIRONWENTAL SIGNIFICANCE PerT OF’{ ReELomMERDED
AREA Al

" DOCUMENTATION JACOBRS LEWIS VINES DpaTE aspTEMBER (775,
A-RCA-I—ITE—OTS 311




___ﬁ
v
H

Bl

MECHANICS INSTITUTE, 115119 STURT STREET

BUILDING ANALYSIS AND DESCRIPTION

“The Mechanics Institute in Sturt Street was born in April 1859,
in a little wooden house between Humffray and Barkly Streets,
in Main Street, and its first reading-room was opened, as was
afterwards the Ballarat Fast Public Library, Iin the engine-house
of the Ballarat Fire Brigade., On the 20th of April, 1859 the
first committes was chosen (H.R.Casclli eand W.B.Withers were
both members). The First stone of the first part of the Sturt
Street building was laid with Masonic honours by Mr.H.Cuthbert
on the 28th of September 1860, and on the 19th of December the
reading room was opened. The room has since been enlarged, and
iIs now the most spacious of the kind in the colony." 1

The Ballarat Star of 28 September 1260 gave more information regarding

~this building., fAs many of our.readers are already awarc...... .(the

building) comprises two stories, with a lecture hall and offices on the
upper storey and below a reading room, library, class rooms, offices and
shops in front, the architect being Mr,Charles Boykett. Of the design

only a part will now be erected, namely the hall and the apartments
comérised in the space underneath, For the shell of this work the contract
has been taken by Messrs.Francis and Watson fbr,§i985 the front portion of
the site being left unoccupied in the meantime. The height of the hall will
be 25 feet and 8 windows will admit. light to this splendid room, twenty

.pilasters with moulded boses and capitals, adding strength and beauty to

the whele......The works at present contracted for will cost as we have

seen ,‘{ 1985, but the furnishing and fitting will swell the amount. to;.( 3500."

There would apﬁear to haverbeen_a\change in plan as the buildings were not
completed to the original plans as‘ﬁescribed above. The Sturt Street
building was completed to,the‘desigﬁ of J.H,Jones and Withers describes

it as one of the 1argest“and handsomest in the town. It was opened for

a fine arts exhibition by His Excellency the Governor on 2lst July 1869.

The library now appears to incorporate the former Mining Exchange hall which
was constructed adjacent to the early hall with an entrance from Sturt Street.

This is shown in Nettleton's "Views of Victoria" photograph of Sturt Street.

‘This is where mining transactions were carried cut at "the corner" before

the construction of the extant Mining Exchange Building.

l.Withers, History of Ballarat 1887 ed. p.287.
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MECHANICS INSTITUTE, 115-119 STURT STREET (contd.)

BUILDING ANALYSIS AND DESCRIPTION

Alterations and additions include the billiard room which was opened
in February 1879.2 In 1801 Clegg, Kell and Miller carried out
alterations to the hall;3 Clegg and Miller designed brick additions in
1905 and shopfront alterations in 1911. In 1832 Clegg and Morrow
undertook alterations to the Britﬁania Picture Theatre followed by

alterations to conveniences in 1935 by the same firm.4

The Mechanics Institute, Sturt Street facade, is an unusual but perhaps

not entirely successful composition of two large three storey pavilions —
flanking a rather curious heterogeneous central panel. It conprises an /
arched entrance at ground floor level with sculptured relief panels in
the spandrels above the arch itself, a slightly projecting balconette

at the first floor level in front of a recessed alcove containing a bank
of slender windows beneath a sort of compressed hemicycle, with a pro-
jecting keystone scroll and wreaths in the spandrel. Above this. at
second storey level is an unroofed recessed balcony (from which the iron
balustrading has been removed) with undersized French doors in three

openings united by a single cornice'canopy above which is a large statue,

presumably of Minerva.,

The pavilions themselves contaip a row of attic lights above the.line of
the original verandah roof. (There were two verandahs - the first was .
two separate post-supported sections open at the central entrance, the
later was similar but with a central transverse barrel vault over the
entrance.) In the two floors above there are arched and square headed
windows at first and second floor respectively. These are set between
simple pilasters and antae of reérésentational masonryiénd a solid panel
parapet carrying prnamental terminals. The roof has been rebuilt, the
widow's walk and chimney capping removed. The external carcass of the
buildinaﬁbtherwise has seen little change. The earlier hall, now a cinema,
is quite. impressive from Lewis Street at the rear, although the interior

has seen many modifications.

2. loc. cit.
3. Ballarat City Council, Building Permits Book.
4. loc. cit.
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MECHANICS INSTITUTE, 115-119 STURT STREET (contd.)

BUILDING ANALYSIS AND DESCRIPTION

Internally the only intact areas are parts of the club rooms, the stair

“to the front section of the building (a fine staircase with octagonal
.skylight rising to a peak, now blocked in by later roofing). The
.principal interest lies in the library which was formerly thes trading

-hall of the original Gold Exchange. It is very plainly decorated with

z-modern resheeted ceiling, but a Vef§ gfand skylight in four bays in
which beams run across the céiling level and have pendant pineapple-

like bosses or perhaps bunches of grapes. There is a dentillated
cornice around the outer edge of the skylight, and above are plain
pilasters rising in each bay to divide off four lights of windows and

at the end a semicircular sort of half wheel window. Above that level .
is another cornice with brackets all around the skylight, and again this

continues across as beams in the divisions between the bays. There is a

simple glazed roof above that.

The exterior of thz building is substantially intact with.the following
exceptions - shopfronts and central entry doors, a modern awning which
insensitively runs through the arched entry, the central advertising sign
for the picture theatre, the removal of balcony balustrade, widow's walk
and chimney capping. The inteiior has been largely remodelled, excép£
as noted above,

*

This building is of importance on both -architectural and historical grounds.
It is a unique combination of elements, and the library interior is. of major
importance. Historically it has had association with the earliest period
of Ballarat and some of its most preminent citizens. Both sections are of
early dates; the hall 'is the oldest survi{}ng in Ballarat, and the front

facade was of an impressive scale for its time with many elaborate

decorative ‘devices.
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Ballarat Mechanics' Institute, 1873.
{photograph:

from Annual Report, 1873, reproduced in McCallum,
a History of Ballarat Libraries.)
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